
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2021 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

5:15 PM 
 

 

Budget Workshop 
. Workshop 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 
. Drought update and Town Water Information 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
1. Visitors - Items Not on the Agenda 

2. Community Comment Period for: Reports, Disbursements, and/or Consent Agenda 

Staff Reports 
3. Public Works & Utilities Report 

4. Police Report 

5. Finance Director Report 

6. Town Attorney Report 

Disbursements 
7. Disbursements 

Consent Agenda 
8. Regular Minutes-August 24, 2021 

9. Special Event Permit - Kids Pasta Project 

Unfinished Business 

10. Community Comment Period for: Unfinished Business 
11. Committee Assignments 

12. Mayor List of Duties 

13. Provisional Meeting Protocol Review 

New Business 

14. Community Comment Period for: New Business 
15. Appointment of Town Treasurer 

16. Designation of Additional Signatory for Bank Accounts 

17. Discussion of Reporting Protocol during Town Administrator Absence 

18. Discussion of Process for Hiring Chief of Police 

19. Discussion RFP for Town Attorney Hiring 

20. Contract with Hotchkiss for Police Coverage 

Mayor’s Report 
21. Mayor’s Report 

Committee Reports 
22. Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Tree Board 

Advisory Water 

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

23. GAPS  

Adjournment 

24. Community Comment Period for: Process and/or Decisions Made 

Adjournment 
25. Adjournment 

  

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

3



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the event the Board plans to discuss more than 

one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the 

announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into 

executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

4



5



6



Water Data for Aug. 2021 

Lamborn Water Treatment Plant 

 Filtered water:   15,585,700 gallons 

 Backwash water:  427,604 gallons 

 Spilled water:  2,149,520 gallons 

 German water:  10,441,500 gallons 

 Reynolds water: 5,130,630 gallons 

 Return water:  299,610 gallons 

Clock Water Treatment Plant 

 Filtered Water:  908,000 gallons 

 Mays Water:  4,671,000 gallons 

 Spilled water:  3,663,000 gallons 

 

7



Public Works 

9/10/2021 

Streets 

 *New Four way stop at 2nd and Main has been installed. 

 *Crosswalks and stop bars have been installed at 2nd and Main, 2nd and Grand, and at 4th and 
Grand. 

 *Double yellow striping have been painted on Grand Ave, and Samuel Wade. 

 *Street repair at 2nd and North Fork has been completed 

 * Two small patched are under way for repair and 1st and Niagra 

Parks 

 *Watering and mowing is going well  

 *I am reviewing Apple Valley Park tree inventory and will be putting a RFP together for trimming 
in parks. 

 

Sewer 

 *Treatment of BOD’s and Ammonia is going very well 

 *I am also in the process of researching different slug removal process  

 *Flow meter calibration will be completed in the month of September 

 *I am putting together RFP for Manhole replacement on 3rd street to have work started by end 
of September 

Water 

 *Water data is attached  

 *New flow meter finally got here 9/9/2021 and is schedule for install for the week of 9/13 

 * Several repairs have be completed both water plants 

 *Calibration of all turbidity and CL17 have been completed 

 *8/30/2021 several people were without water on O rd , There was a contractor building a pond 
for a resident and hit a 4” main line that feeds water west of Lamborn Mesa rd.  There were no locates 
called in.  Contractor will be responsible for all the cost for the repair. 

Other  

 *One of the public works crew has resigned his position.  A exit interview was completed.  I am 
hopeful that I can get a replacement soon. 

8



 

  

9



Finance Report as of 08/10/21 presented at the 08/14/21 meeting: 

 

Monthly: 

Payroll for was completed, reviewed, and released 

Bank accounts through 7/31/2021 have been reconciled and will be reviewed. 

Chase credit card bill for 7/24/21-8/23/21 is attached. 

Norris Retirement is pending with an effective date of 9/26/21. 

Banking: 

Bank Balances provided on the Disbursement Report as of 8/10/21. 

Working with the bank to extend the LOC-Matured 9/05/21. 

Required Filings: 

Nothing new to report 

Year-End: 

No changes to report 

Audit: 

No changes to report 

Budget: 

Finance Committee is reviewing salary ranges to be used for the 2022 budget.  
Town Administrator along with the Finance Committee are reviewing staffing levels for the 2022 budget. 
Energy vendors are expecting rate increases of around 7%. 
CIRSA Workers Compensation increased nearly 8% and Property Casualty increased nearly 13%. 
Work Session #1 will review revenue and fixed costs. 
 
Other (Continued): 

Colorado Department of Revenue – Exempt Fuel – Account selected for review 30 days from 2/17/21. 
Completed and e-mailed 03/02/2021 @ 4:23pm. All information was resubmitted via Revenue Online 
and was accepted 3/10/2021. Additional correspondence received 6/14/2021 requested additional 
information on the Reedy receipts to be provided within 30 days.  All requested information was 
submitted and is being reviewed. 

Stop N Save will be ending the on-account program and will be switching to a Fleet Card Account 
program.  Application has been submitted and being processed. 

The Fund Balance and Financial Policy was reviewed by the board at the 5/25/21 meeting with 
suggested changes. Changes are in process. 

10



Process and handling of Marijuana fee revenue. 

Other (New): 

Training of the new Finance Clerk – Ongoing. 

 

OTHER TO DO ITEMS: 

Surplus Items – have requested procedure confirmation for audit compliance. 
 

ClearGov – The requested changes have been made and are waiting for a second review. 

ClearGov – Installation of Budget to Actual. 

PTO still needs reviewed regarding the new mandated requirements created from the Family Act.  
Finance Committee started discussion at the 3/10/21. There was further discussion at the 3/24/21 
meeting.  Dave Knutson has provided link to changes and required timeline that are expected by the 
new mandated regulations. Further review and timeline determination continues. 

 

GRANT UPDATES:   

Current Grants: 

ARP-received $184,616.40.  

2020 Grants: 

Balance available till 12/31/2021 is $16,024.38 + $169.20.  This will be on the September 14, 2021, 
agenda for determination of use. 

Tier I Grant from DOLA for Asset Inventory and Mapping Total Grant amount $48,629.00 + Town match 
$48,629.00 -submitted through 5/31/2021. Invoices paid to date: $1,027.25 + 1,556.00.  Remaining 
amount is $15,067.45. 

CDOT Grant for Revitalizing Main Street – Revised Inv#2 for $4,303.59, Inv#3 for $5997.72, and Inv#4 for 
$11,409.42 were submitted and accepted on 3/17/21. Invoices paid to date = $20,177.60. Remaining = 
$5,322.31. 

GOCO Park, Recreation, and Trails Master Plan (Completion Date = 09/26/2021).  Submission pending.  
Invoice paid to date: $5,128.50 + 13,850.59 + $15,817.15 = $34,796.24. Remaining = $41,023.84. 

 

Please note: This report is not a comprehensive list of all projects but acts as a highlight of 
included packet documents, ongoing, and upcoming projects. 

11



 

 

 P.O. Box 3310, 130 N. Park Avenue       Montrose, Colorado 81402               T: 970-249-7000               F: 970-249-8440 

 

DEVOR & PLUMHOFF, LLC                                                                         Bo James Nerlin   
Attorneys and Counselors at Law                        bo@coloradowestlaw.com 

         

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Board of Trustees, Town of Paonia 
From:  Bo James Nerlin 
Re: Attorney Memo 
Date:  9/08/2021 
CC: Ms. Corinne Ferguson  
 
 
 This memorandum is to provide a brief update of some of the projects that I have been 
working on behalf of the Town.  
 
 Agenda Preparation and Review 
 
 The Town Administrator has been out.  With this, I’ve worked with the Mayor to prepare 
this month’s agenda.  The focus of the agenda is to cover any essential items while the Town 
Administrator remains out on leave.  
 
 Town Attorney RFP  
 
 I have reviewed the Town Attorney request for proposals included in your packet, and I 
believe it does a good job of detailing the role and responsibilities of the Town Attorney for any 
perspective application.  I believe that the timeframe provided in the RFP is acceptable.  
 
 Marijuana Licensing 
 
 I have reviewed and discussed the Marijuana license applications that have been 
submitted to the Town, and I have discussed with Ms. Ferguson scheduling the licensing 
hearings for the submitted applications.   
 
 Nature Connection  
 
 I have reviewed the draft letter of intent from the Nature Connection regarding trail 
alignment. I have provided comments on this letter of intent to the Nature Connection and the 
Town Administrator.  
 
 Pending Agenda Items 
 
 As per the direction provided by the Board at the Town’s August 24 Board Meeting, the 
following items will be placed on the September 28, 2021, Agenda:  
 

12



1. Follow up discussion regarding proposed citizen’s initiative 
a. Outline of financial and public works documents to be made available  
b. Discussion of referendum or alternative processes for challenging Council 

decisions  
 

2. Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals 
a. Follow up discussion regarding concerns raised regarding seat appointment  

 
  

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



 TOWN OF PAONIA

 

____________________________________________________________________________________  
August 10, 2021, special meeting 5:30pm & Regular Meeting 6:30 pm 

Page 1 of 7  
  

Regular & Special Town Board Meeting, August 24, 2021 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 

  
Mayor Bachran 
Trustee Knutson 
Trustee Budinger 
Trustee Pattison 
Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Meck 
Trustee Bear 

 
August 24, 2021,                                    Special Meeting Minutes                                               5:00 pm                    
   
Mayor Mary Bachran called the Special Meeting of the Town of Paonia to order at 5:00 pm. A formal 

video of the Work Session and Regular Meeting link -  
 
ROLL CALL:   
  
Mayor Mary Bachran asked Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro to call the roll.  
  
Deputy Clerk Mojarro called the roll and those present were Mayor Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee 
Pattison, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Johnson and Trustee Meck.  
  
Committee Structure Review:  
Board members spoke about the committee structure based on each committees’ roles and 
responsibilities that were presented. Discussed ad hoc and standby committees.  
 
Trustee Knutson moved that in preparation for redesigning the committee structure that each committee 
be asked to provide two pieces of information to the Board. One that the committee assignments that are 
ad hoc and ongoing need to be addressed. Second whether the committee needs to be a standing 
committee, seconded by Trustee Budinger. Motion unanimously passed.  
 
Trustee Knutson moved to amend the motion to add language - using the screen of governance and 
management, and that the committees’ look at their task to decide which task is governance or 
management.  
 

25



 TOWN OF PAONIA

 

____________________________________________________________________________________  
August 10, 2021, special meeting 5:30pm & Regular Meeting 6:30 pm 

Page 2 of 7  
  

Trustee Knutson moved to have the Town Administrator provide alternative staff structure and that 
individual Board members provide input in advance, seconded by Trustee Pattison. Motion failed with 
three (3) nays and two (2) ayes.  
 
Mayor Role Review:  
Board member discussed the mayor’s roles and responsibilities. Topic of discussion were strong or weak 
mayor structures. 
 
Trustee Pattison moved that Mayor bring back a list of going projects and activities looking through the 
same lens of governance vs management, and as a Board can decide what responsibilities they want to 
confer on the mayor formally, seconded by Trustee Knutson. Motion unanimously passed. 
 
The Special Meeting was Adjourned at 6:15 pm by Mayor Bachran.  
 
August 24, 2021,                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                                               6:30 pm                    
 
Mayor Mary Bachran called the Regular Meeting of the Town of Paonia to order at 6:31 pm.  
 
ROLL CALL:   
  
Mayor Bachran asked Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro to call the roll.  
  
Deputy Clerk Mojarro called the roll and those present were Mayor Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee 
Pattison, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Johnson and Trustee Meck.  
 
1. Approval of the Agenda:   
  Trustee Bear moved to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Trustee Johnson. Motion 
unanimously passed.  
  
2. Announcements:  
Mayor Bachran announced to the Delta County Commissioner’s accepted that the mayor be a on the 
Airport Committee. The CDOT grant was not granted to the Town. Chief Ferguson announced his 
resignation along with the resignation of officer Brian Berger and PD Clerk Joanne Katzer. The 
Governmental Affairs and Public Safety will be conducting an exit interview with the Chief.  
 
Trustee Patterson moved to solicit bids for a municipal organizational, consultant recruiter, seconded by 
Trustee Meck. Motion failed with two (2) ayes and four (4) nays.  
 

26



 TOWN OF PAONIA

 

____________________________________________________________________________________  
August 10, 2021, special meeting 5:30pm & Regular Meeting 6:30 pm 

Page 3 of 7  
  

Visitors and Guest:   
Mayor gave credit to Seth Weber and artist involved in painting the mural next door to Town Hall, and 
also to the volunteers Len Howe, Janet Thorup, and Elain Brett with helping with the Town’s 
landscaping.  
 
 
Community Comment Period: 
 
Mayor Bachran read the decorum statement to Citizens and asked Citizens for comments on Items not 
on the tonight’s Agenda.  
 
Mary DiFranco and Suzanne Watson commented on the fence issue, Marylee Hauze commented on her 
water leak issue, Bill Brunner and Suzanne Watson also commented on the leak issue. Ashly Sargent 
commented on the fence issue.  
 
Staff Reports:  
 Town Administrator Corinne Ferguson report was included and answered Board questions on items 
in her report.  
 
Town Attorney Nerlin no report was included and reported out to the Board about that the report of the 
fence issue will be in the next meeting agenda and answered Board questions. 
  
Treasurer Report: Treasurer King was absent from the meeting. Finance Officer Jones was available to 
answer questions about the documents included. 
 
Disbursements: 
 Trustee Budinger moved to approve disbursements as presented, seconded by Trustee Knutson. Motion 
unanimously passed.  
 
Consent Agenda 
Regular Minutes – 08/10/2021 
 
Trustee Knutson moved to approve the consent agenda as provided, seconded by Trustee Budinger. 
Motion unanimously passed.  
 
Trustee Pattison moved to amend the motion to only approve items on the consent to number six (6), 
seconded by Trustee Knutson. Motion unanimously passed.  
 

27



 TOWN OF PAONIA

 

____________________________________________________________________________________  
August 10, 2021, special meeting 5:30pm & Regular Meeting 6:30 pm 

Page 4 of 7  
  

Mountain Harvest Festival Fee Waiver Request: 
Representatives Thomas Backus and Josh Behrman addressed the Board in a request to waive the park 
use fee of $450.00.  
 
Trustee Knutson moved to waive the park use fee for the Mountain Harvest Festival, seconded by 
Trustee Budinger. Motion passes with five (5) ayes and one (1) nay.  
 
Unfinished Business 
Community Comment Period: 
No comments were made. 
 
Second Reading – Ordinance 2021-06 Municipal Code Modification of Chapter 06 Article 01 – 
Alcoholic Beverages Licensing and Distance from Public Schools: A second reading review of the 
ordinance which modifies it to reduce the distance restriction to 350 feet and allows for issuance of bed 
and breakfast permits.  
 
Trustee Bear moved to approve the Second Reading – Ordinance 2021-06 Municipal Code Modification 
of Chapter 06 Article 01 – Alcoholic Beverages Licensing and Distance from Public Schools, seconded 
by Trustee Budinger. Motion unanimously passed. 
 
Second Reading of Ordinance 2021-07 Amendment to Provisions of Town Code Regarding 
Purchase and Possession of Marijuana: The second reading review of the ordinance which is to 
address the rescinding of the prohibition of marijuana sales and taxation in the Town of Paonia. 
 
Trustee Budinger moved to approve the Second Reading of Ordinance 2021-07 Amendment to 
Provisions of Town Code Regarding Purchase and Possession of Marijuana, seconded by Trustee 
Johnson. Motion unanimously passed 
 
New Business 
 
Community Comment Period: 
Bill Brunner commented the structure of the public comment period. Suzanne Watson commented on 
the commercial zone billing and the acquisition of a public works vehicle. Christina Patterson on the 
asset inventory for public works.  
 
Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals Open Seat Appointments: The Board nominated the 
candidates to set on the Zoning Board of Adjustment & Appeals.  
 

28



 TOWN OF PAONIA

 

____________________________________________________________________________________  
August 10, 2021, special meeting 5:30pm & Regular Meeting 6:30 pm 

Page 5 of 7  
  

Trustee Bear moved to nominate all in town residents to be on the Zoning Board of Adjustment & 
Appeals, names of the members Gia Fanelli, Suzanne Watson, Steve Clisset, and Ian Oeser.  
 
Trustee Knutson moved to nominate Zuzana Tauvinkl to be on the Zoning Board of Adjustment & 
Appeals seconded by Trustee Budinger. Motion unanimously passed.  
 
Board discussion of Proposed Citizen Initiative Ordinance: Bill Brunner the author of the citizen 
initiative addressed the Board about CORA request.  
 
Administrator Ferguson is to bring back a CORA cost analysis to the Board.  
 
Trustee Pattison moved to direct staff to do a CORA analysis and bring back to the Board by the second 
meeting in September, a review of what the processes would look like to get all Trustee emails available 
on the website to adopt Clear Gove’s open check book and to make all unprotected infrastructure 
information available to the public, seconded by Trustee Knutson. Motion unanimously passed.  
 
Trustee Pattison moved to develop an ordinance to identify protected infrastructure security. Failed for a 
lack of second.  
 
Trustee Pattison moved to develop an ordinance specifically to protect data access to the Board 
members, seconded by Trustee Knutson. Motion unanimously passed.  
 
The Board discussed the municipal court part of the ordinance for citizen who want to challenge an 
ordinance. The Board directed the Town Administrator to put out on the list serve for municipalities to 
see if there is a Town that has a process of some kind.  
 
Commercial Zone Billing Procedure: 
The Board discussed the process of how commercial property owners are being billed. Administrator 
Ferguson explained how it’s historically been done and. Trustee Pattison commented as a public 
member regarding how she as a commercial property owner is being charged. Trustee Pattison 
suggested having a single base rate across the Board or by tap size. Town Administrator will contact 
RCAC, the company that is doing the rate study for the Town, to ask them how this will impact cost. 
 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund Use: 
 
Trustee Bear moved to commit the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds of $369,232.79 dollars to 
the tank lining of the two million tank and to the altitude valve of the one million tank, seconded by 
Trustee Budginger. Motion unanimously passed.  

29



 TOWN OF PAONIA

 

____________________________________________________________________________________  
August 10, 2021, special meeting 5:30pm & Regular Meeting 6:30 pm 

Page 6 of 7  
  

Board Review of Debt Reserve Requirements and Fund Balances: 
The Board discussed the rate covenant, operation & maintenance reserves. 
 
Trustee Knutson moved to extend the meeting for thirty (30) minutes, seconded by Trustee Budinger. 
Motion passed with five (5) ayes and one (1) nay.  
 
Board consideration of Town Line of Credit Loan Renewal: 
 
Trustee Pattison moved to renew the line of credit, seconded by Trustee Knutson. Motion unanimously 
passed.  
 
Board Consideration of Public Works Vehicle Acquisition: 
 
Trustee Knutson moved to authorize the purchase of the vehicles presented, seconded by Trustee 
Budinger. Motion passed with four (4) ayes and two (2) nays.  
 
Mayor’s Report 

Report was included. Mayor Bachran answered question on items on her report and commented on 
the if the Board wanted to bring back the requirement of wearing of mask.  

 
Committee Reports 
  
Finance and Personal: Discussed the budget calendar. 
 
Governmental Affairs and Public Safety: reported as included. 
 
Public Works and Facilities: Nothing to report. 
 
Tree Board: Nothing to report. 
 
Advisory Water Committee: Nothing to report. 
 
Community Comment Period:  
Ashley Sargent commented that if her personal information could be redacted before sending out to the 
Board members. Suzanne Watson commented on the committee wish list, suggested that CORA should 
have a place on the website, that emails from other citizens should be publicly available for viewing, the 
Zoning Board of Adjustment & Appeals should have a Planning & Zoning member and needs to be 
corrected.  

30



 TOWN OF PAONIA

 

____________________________________________________________________________________  
August 10, 2021, special meeting 5:30pm & Regular Meeting 6:30 pm 

Page 7 of 7  
  

Trustee Bear moved to extend meeting for another ten (10) minutes, seconded by Trustee Meck. Motion 
passed with five (5) ayes and one (1) nay.  
 
Thomas Markle commented on the commercial zone billing procedure and how his commercial property 
is being billed.  
 
Trustee Pattison would like to add to the next meeting agenda the discussion of how the process 
structure of the comment period went. 
 
  
ADJOURNMENT:   
 The Regular Council Meeting was adjourned at 9:13 pm.  
  

  
  
  
 ______________________________      ______________________________ 
Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                             Mary Bachran, Mayor  

 

  

31



32



33



34



Review	of	ongoing	GAPS	committee	topics	through	the	lens	of	governance	
versus	management 
	
 

• Governmental Affairs 
o Park use fees 

o Management - staff recommendations could come to the board directly 
for further consideration 

o Out-of-town residents on town committees 
o Governance, but GAPS committee has already provided 

recommendations, so no additional committee work required 
o Food trucks (draft ordinance was prepared, but has not yet come before the 

board) 
o Governance, but GAPS committee has already provided 

recommendations, so no additional committee work required 
• Public Safety 

o Animal control and registration 
o Management - staff recommendations could come to the board directly 

for further consideration 
o Resource list for community members in distress 

o Management to develop the list that can be made available now 
o Governance regarding prioritization of additional resources to address 

homelessness and crisis management 
o Follow up on sealing Poulos Park mural for easier cleaning 

o Management 
  

At this time, GAPS committee will not continue to meet on a regular basis and instead 
would meet as needed if additional tasks are assigned by the board. 

 

35



Mayor Roles and Responsibilities 
 
1. Adhere to State and Town requirement including signing documents and acting as executive 
head of the Town at ceremonies. Administrative 
 
2. Conduct the Board of Trustees meetings. Administrative 
 
3. Act as day-to-day supervisor for the Town Administrator and meet with him/her weekly. 
Administrative 
 
4. Supervise the Chief of Police. Administrative 
 
5. Represent the Town at County and Regional meetings. Bring information from those 
meetings back to the Board. Administrative 
 
6. Investigate funding opportunities including grants and follow up on those opportunities 
when applicable. Write, or help write grants for benefit the Town. Managerial This is a 
personal investment in the Town. The Town Administrator has stated she does not have 
grant writing experience and I do. It seems in the best interest of the Town to accept the gifts 
of time and expertise offered to the Town with no compensation when that expertise is not 
available on staff. 
 
7. Act as liaison with various agencies in coordination with the Town Administrator and/or 
Chief of Police. These might include State agencies including funders, non-profit agencies, 
local and County entities, regional agencies and Federal agencies. Administrative 
 
8. Search out information on Town issues when applicable. Recent examples include finding 
information on ARPA funding and requirements, investigating water rights for the Town, 
speaking with the Attorney General’s water division office and Gunnison River Basin office, 
getting information from CIRSA on committee structure, getting information from CML. 
Administrative/Managerial While this can be done by the Town Manager, a request or 
discussion with the Mayor adds weight and attention to the issue that may not be brought to 
bear at a lower level and can result in action much more quickly. 
 
9. Advocating for the Town at all levels of government, with funding agencies and non-profits. 
Administrative 
 
10. Begin to collect information, create relationships and investigate possibilities on possible 
future issues such as affordable housing, enhancements to Town properties, etc. Managerial 
Again, when the Mayor is inquiring, more weight can be given to the issue. 

36



 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL – TOWN ATTORNEY 
 
The Town of Paonia is currently seeking the services of a municipal attorney to serve as 
their Town Attorney. It is intended that the successful candidate would perform the ser-
vices listed in this proposal. 
 
COMMUNITY BACKGROUND 
The Town of Paonia was incorporated in 1902. The Town has a population of approxi-
mately 1,451 residents. The community consists of approximately 800 households. The 
Town is almost entirely built-out. 
 
The community is zoned for and developed with different zones for commercial, resi-
dential, industrial and developing resources. Listed below are amenities located within 
Town limits: 
Parks: Apple Valley Park, Town Park, Poulos Park, Paonia River Park, and Lee!s Park. 
Paonia Public Library 
Delta County Fire Protection District #2 
Town Hall, which includes town administration, police, public works, parks, and 
municipal court; 
Public schools: Paonia Elementary and Junior and High School, ____and Vision Char-
ter. 
 
The Town of Paonia has a Mayor/Council form of government. There are six (6) Board 
of Trustee representatives, and each representative is elected to the Board for stag-
gered four (4) year terms. The Mayor is elected for a four (4) year term. Every two (2) 
years, (possibly) the Mayor and three (3) Council representatives are up for election. 
The Mayor and all Trustees are elected "at-large.” 
 
The Town employs Department Heads and a staff of approximately 9 full time and 2 
part-time employees to manage the Town!s day-to-day business. Town departments in-
clude: administration, public works, and police. In addition to the Board of Trustees and 
the Mayor, there are currently three (3) volunteer boards: Planning Commission, Water 
Advisory Board, and the combined Zoning Board of Adjustments, and the Board of Ad-
justment and Appeals. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
CRS 31-4-304 provides for the appointment of a Town Attorney. "The city council shall 
appoint a city attorney, who, upon taking office, shall be an attorney-at-law licensed to 
practice in the state of Colorado.” 
 
Town Attorney-Functions and Duties: 
(a) The Attorney shall act as legal advisor to, and be attorney and counsel for, the 
Board of Trustees and the Mayor. They shall advise any officer or department head of 

37



 

 

the Town in matters relating to their official duties when so requested and shall file with 
the Clerk a copy of all written opinions given by them. 
(b) The Attorney shall prepare or review all ordinances, contracts, bonds, and other writ-
ten instruments, which are submitted to him by the Board or by the Mayor and shall 
promptly give their opinion as to the legal consequences thereof. 
(c) The Attorney shall prosecute ordinance violations and they shall conduct for the 
Town such cases in court and before other legally constituted tribunals. They shall file 
with the Clerk copies of such records and files relating thereto as the Board may direct. 
(d) The Attorney shall call to the attention of the Board all matters of law, and changes 
or developments therein, affecting the Town. 
(e) The Attorney shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed for them by the 
Board of Trustees, including municipal court prosecution. 
 
The Town Attorney is usually required to attend in person or remotely one (1) Board of 
Trustee meeting a month, and may be required to attend Board of Adjustment and Ap-
peals, Planning & Zoning Commission, weekly staff meetings with the Department 
Heads, and other meetings as necessary. Again, meetings can be attended in person or 
remotely. 
 
PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
The following items should be addressed as part of the proposal: 
1. Describe your experience with municipal law generally and specifically speak to your 
experience with regard to municipal elections, municipal land use regulations, real prop-
erty matters generally, zoning law, constitutional issues (state and federal) affecting mu-
nicipalities, municipal finance, complex litigation, appellate practice and any other areas 
you believe are relevant to the Town!s decision. 
2. Provide a list of other municipal clients with whom you have worked in the past five 
years. 
3. Describe any knowledge or experience that makes you particularly qualified for the 
position. 
4. The Town is soliciting talent and expertise first and foremost. While cost to the Town 
is important, the selection will not be based solely on cost. Please detail and explain 
your required fees to perform the requested services. 
5. Provide your Martindale-Hubbell rating and a biography. 
6. Please provide a list of all attorneys in the firm who might provide services under this 
proposal and list any disciplinary proceedings against them. 
7. Please disclose any potential conflicts of interest. 
8. Please provide a minimum of three client references. 
9. If you propose to bill for services at an hourly rate or a monthly fee, provide the cur-
rent hourly/monthly rate for each lawyer and for each employee of your firm who may 
work on Town matters. State specifically whether you will work on a fixed fee basis and, 
if so, how you propose that such a fee be determined. State specifically that if you are 
the successful candidate and if your fee will be based on hourly rates that you will not 
increase for Town matters before January 1, 2024. 

38



 

 

10. Please provide the name of your professional liability insurance carrier and the limits 
of your professional liability insurance. 
11. Describe the support services you would receive from your firm if selected. 
12. Specify availability and preferences for in person or remote attendance. 
 
 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
1. The Town reserves the right to undertake its own investigation to evaluate a candi-
date. The Town shall have the sole discretion to accept or reject a proposal. 
2. All proposals become the property of the Town upon receipt and will not be returned 
to the candidate. Selection or rejection of the proposal will not affect this right. 
3. The Town operates under the public disclosure laws, as part of normal procedures. 
Proprietary information must be identified and will be protected as far as possible. 
4. Cost of developing the proposal, attendance at the oral interview or any other such 
costs are entirely the responsibility of the candidate and shall not be reimbursed in any 
manner by the Town. 
5. Failure to conform to proposal rules, including failure to respond to each item in the 
Proposal section of this RFP or to follow the proposal format requested in the RFP may 
lead to the rejection of a proposal. The submittals should contain all information neces-
sary to evaluate the proposals. 
6. The successful candidate shall not at any time permit any individual employed by the 
Town to benefit because of a financial interest in the candidate!s firm, any affiliate of the 
successful candidate, or any subcontractor. 
7. The final selection will be based on the written proposal, oral and written responses 
of client references and on the interview with the candidate. 
 
SELECTION PROCESS 
The following is the timeline for the selection process: 
Send out Request for Proposals: September 20, 2021 
Deadline for submission of proposals: November 1, 2021 (4:30 p.m.) 
Schedule interviews: November 10,2021 
Conduct interviews: November 16, 2021 
Appointment of Town Attorney at Board Meeting: November 23, 2021 
 
Questions concerning the information contained herein should be directed to the follow-
ing person: 
Corinne Ferguson, Town Administrator 970/527-4101 telephone 970/527-4102 fax 
 
Written proposals will be received at the Town of Paonia, Clerk!s Office, PO Box 460, 
214 Grand Avenue, Paonia, CO 81428, or via e-mail at: corinne@townofpaonia.com, 
until 4:30 p.m. on Monday, November 1, 2021. The Town reserves the right to accept or 
reject any and all proposals and to waive any informalities or irregularities in said pro-
posals. The Request for Proposal does not bind the Town to accept a proposal when, in 

39



 

 

the Town!s sole discretion; the Town determines not to do so. Additionally, the Town re-
serves the right to modify the schedule as necessary and will notify those participating 
in the proposal of the change in writing. The Town of Paonia is an equal opportunity em-
ployer. 

40



  
Independent Contractor Agreement - Page 1 of 3 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, 
AND 

TOWN OF HOTCHKISS, COLORADO  
 

 THIS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered 
into this    day of September 2021, by and between the Town of Paonia, a Colorado statutory town 
and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Paonia”), and the Town of Hotchkiss, a Colorado 
Statutory town and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Hotchkiss”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Paonia, as a Colorado statutory town located in Delta County, Colorado, has the power and 
authority, in accordance with the enumerated powers granted to it under the Colorado 
Constitution and those enumerated powers granted to statutory towns pursuant to C.R.S.  31-
15-101 et. seq., to enact and enforce municipal ordinances as codified in the Town’s 
Municipal Code.     
  

B. Paonia has its own police force managed and supervised by             .   
 

C. Paonia needs an interim policing service, for assistance with general police department 
matters and the enforcement of the Town of Paonia Municipal Code.   
 

D. Hotchkiss has its own separate municipal police force, with deputies that have prior 
experience working in the field of law enforcement and possesses the requisite skill, 
licensure, and expertise to serve as a part-time officer for the Town of Paonia.   
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 
agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE 1 

TERM OF CONTRACT 
 
1. 1.01. This Agreement shall become effective on September        , 2021 (the 

“Effective Date”) and shall continue in effect until          , 2021.  Thereafter, this Agreement shall 
automatically renew for successive one-month periods unless terminated by either party upon ten 
(10) days’ written notice prior to the expiration of the then-current term. 

 
ARTICLE 2 

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY HOTCHKISS 
 

2. The Hotchkiss employees shall serve as part-time Officers of the Town of Paonia, 
with such duties as are customarily associated with such position, under the direction and 
supervision of   

41



  
Independent Contractor Agreement - Page 2 of 3 

 
3. Extent of Services. The Hotchkiss employees shall devote sufficient time and 

attention to the performance of his or her duties and shall not be engaged in any other activity that 
would interfere with his or her ability to perform the duties under this Agreement. The duties shall 
be rendered in the Town of Paonia, Colorado, or at such other place or places and at such times as 
the needs of the Town of Paonia may from time-to-time dictate.  

 
ARTICLE 3 

FEES AND OTHER COMPENSATION 
 

3.01. Hotchkiss agrees to provide the following services for Paonia as outlined on the 
Attachment A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, hereinafter (the “Services”).  Hotchkiss shall 
provide the services at the following rate: $39.00 per hour invoiced bi-weekly 

 
ARTICLE 4 

TERMINATION 
 

4.01 Termination by Mutual Agreement or Unilaterally:  This Agreement may be 
terminated at any time by mutual agreement in writing or by either party’s giving not less than five 
(5) days’ notice to the other party, specifying the date of termination. 
 

ARTICLE 5 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
5.01. Entire Agreement: This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either 

oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the engagement of Hotchkiss by Paonia 
and contains all of the covenants and agreements between the parties with respect to that hiring in 
any manner whatsoever. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representation, 
inducements, promises or agreements, orally or otherwise, have been made by any party or anyone 
acting on behalf of any party, which are not embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement 
or promise not contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding on either party, except that any 
other written agreement dated concurrent with or after this Agreement shall be valid as between the 
signing parties thereto. 

 
5.02. Modifications: Any modification of this Agreement shall be effective only if it is in 

writing and signed by the party to be charged. 
 

5.03. Waiver: The failure of either party to insist on strict compliance with any of the 
terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement by the other party shall not be deemed a waiver of 
that term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power at any 
one time or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of that right or power for all or any other 
times. 
 

5.04. Partial Invalidity: If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless 
continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

42



  
Independent Contractor Agreement - Page 3 of 3 

 
5.05. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Colorado. 
 

5.06. Attorney's Fees: If any legal action is commenced or necessary to enforce or interpret 
the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees, costs, 
and necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. 
 

This Agreement is executed in the Town of Hotchkiss, County of Delta, State of Colorado, 
on this           , 2021. 

 
TOWN OF HOTCHKISS, COLORADO, a 
Colorado statutory town: 

 
 

 
By: ______________________________________ 
       Larry B Wilkening, Mayor, Town of Hotchkiss 
 
 
TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, a Colorado 
statutory town:   
 
By: ______________________________________ 
       Mary Bachran, Mayor, Town of Paonia 

43



• Exit interview 
o GAPS committee will confirm confidentiality requirements with Attorney Nerlin 
o GAPS committee has reached out to Chief Ferguson to schedule the interview 

process (form to be returned in writing, followed by an in-person meeting) 
o Pending confirmation by Attorney Nerlin, GAPS committee will prepare a 

summary of the interview and provide this summary to the board 
  

44


	Top
	.	Workshop - RTB
	#0 Workshop

	.	Drought update and Town Water Information - RTB
	#1 Water Data for Aug 2021

	1.	1. Visitors - Items Not on the Agenda
	2.	2
	3.	PW Report
	#3 Public Works 9-10-2021

	4.	4
	5.	Fin Report
	#5 Finance Report 09142021

	6.	Attny Memo
	#6 20210910 Atty Memo

	7.	Disb
	#7 Disbursements

	8.	Reg Minutes
	#8 Aug 24, 2021 reg min

	9.	Kids Pasta Project
	Kids Pasta Project

	10.	9
	11.	GAPS
	#10 Gaps

	12.	Mayor Role
	#11 Mayor Roles and Responsibilities amended

	13.	12
	14.	13
	15.	14
	16.	15
	17.	16
	18.	17
	19.	RFP Attny
	#18 RFP Town Attorney

	20.	Chief
	#19 September 2021 Independent Contractor Agreement with Paonia

	21.	20
	22.	21
	23.	GAPS
	#21 Gaps

	24.	22
	25.	23
	Bottom

